September 26, 2016 7:00 p.m. City Hall
Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance/Roll Call 7:00 p.m.
Approval of the Agenda Approved
Committee Reports
Presentations
Employee Services Awards: Presented

e Christopher Brown, IS Computer Network Administrator — 10

Years
e Jillian Schiessl, Legal Confidential Administrative Assistant — 15
Years

e Allen Backstrom, Parks Maintenance Worker Il — 30 Years
Volunteer of the Month — September 2016 — The Grove Church Presented
Community Beautification Presented
Audience Participation
Approval of Minutes
Presentations
Consent Agenda
Consider the September 7, 2016 Claims in the Amount of $1,001,074.66; Approved
Paid by EFT Transactions and Check Numbers 110935 through 111057
with no Checks Voided
Consider the September 14, 2016 Claims in the Amount of $289,100.38; Approved
Paid by EFT Transactions and Check Numbers 111058 through 111143
with Check Numbers 98971, 107027 & 107269 Voided
Review Bids
Consider Awarding the Sunnyside Safe Routes to School Contract with Approved
Northend Excavating Inc., in the Amount of $179,492.85 Including
Washington State Sales Tax and Approve a Management Reserve of
$20,000 for a Total Allocation of $199,492.85
Public Hearings
New Business
Consider the Local Agency State Aid Project Prospectus and Local Approved
Agency Supplemental Funding Agreement with WSDOT thereby Securing
Construction Funding for the Sunnyside Elementary Safe Routes to
School Project
Consider the Interlocal Agreement with the Snohomish Regional Drug & Approved
Gang Task Force
Consider the Professional Services Agreement with RH2 Engineering, Inc. Approved
for the 560 Zone Booster Pump Station
Consider the Former Geddes Marina Interim Action Project, Starting the Approved
45-day Lien Filing Period for Project Closeout
Consider the Annual Support Agreement and License Agreement for Approved
Munis Software in the Amount of $70,014.23
Consider an Ordinance Authorizing the Condemnation, Appropriation, Approved
Taking, Damaging and Acquisition of Land and Other Property for the Ord. No. 3033
Purpose of Widening 1st Street
Consider an Ordinance Authorizing the Condemnation, Appropriation, Approved

Page 1 of 2







COUNCIL  TMarysville MINUTES

Regular Meeting
September 26, 2016

/

Call to Order / Pledge of Allegiance

Mayor Nehring called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Pastor Dennis Niva gave the
invocation, and Mayor Nehring led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Roll Call

Chief Administrative Officer Hirashima gave the roll call. The following staff and
councilmembers were in attendance.

Mayor: Jon Nehring

Council: Steve Muller, Kamille Norton, Jeff Seibert, Michael Stevens,
Rob Toyer, Jeff Vaughan, and Donna Wright

Absent: None

Also Present: Chief Administrative Officer Gloria Hirashima, Finance
Director Sandy Langdon, Police Chief Rick Smith, City
Attorney Jon Walker, Public Works Director Kevin Nielsen,
Parks and Recreation Director Jim Ballew, Community
Development Director Dave Koenig, and Recording
Secretary Laurie Hugdahl.

Approval of the Agenda

Motion made by Councilmember Muller, seconded by Councilmember Norton, to
approve the agenda. Motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Committee Reports

None

Presentations

A. Employee Services Awards

The following employees received service awards:

9/26/16 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes
Page 1 of 11






Audience Participation

Bruce Bell, 3113 Rockefeller Avenue, Everett, WA 98201, spoke regarding item 9,
condemnation. He stated that he represents the first lien holder. He stated that if the
condemnation goes through, the lien holder is expecting to be paid the fair market value
for the property.

Mark Johnson, 12433 - 48" Drive NE, Marysville, WA 98271 spoke regarding the code
enforcement budget. He urged the City to increase funding for code enforcement and
abatement. He reviewed photos of areas of concern in the city. He urged the City to
order abatement and deal with these issues. Increasing the budget is necessary for any
meaningful improvement.

Ron Friesen, 4714 — 124" Place NE, Marysville, WA, stated he has become a thorn in
the City’'s side because of four junk cars in his neighborhood that he has been trying to
get removed for a year. Since then he has discovered many problems with code
enforcement. He spoke regarding a code enforcement progress report he had compiled.
He summarized that after researching the issues around the city they have determined
that Marysville has the weakest code enforcement code of all surrounding cities. He
stated that the glamor of city events and the need for improvement to streets, parks,
and commercial development has overshadowed the problem of neighborhood neglect.
He pointed out that the police and research confirms that criminal activity is attracted to
neighborhoods in poor condition without regard of the income level of residents. He
asserted that unlike police, code enforcement has no accountability. He claimed that
there is no policy, guidance, or standards for enforcement. He expressed frustration that
only after citizen urging are police starting to help clear vehicles stored on the right of
way. He stated that code enforcement has failed to enlist police help, and police are not
proactive. He noted that right of way information is easily obtained at public works, but
is not being accessed. The MMC and RCW provisions regarding junk vehicles are
ignored. He urged the City to do more abatement. Mr. Friesen stated that people who
care and can leave are leaving, and neighborhoods are dying. He urged the City to
overhaul the code to fix defects.

Mayor Nehring noted that Mr. Johnson referred to a number of issues that have been
put into the pipeline that may be overwhelming the system. He stated that he had
emailed Mr. Friesen this week regarding the 14 submissions that have recently been
submitted by one or both of them. He referred to the statement that Marysville has the
weakest code enforcement around and it is doing nothing. He summarized that of those
14 submissions, eight have been brought into voluntary compliance. Three others are in
the citation and court process at varying levels. He stated that the City does use and
has used abatement process before. That determination is made toward the end of the
process whether they should go toward criminal or abatement based on the
recommendation of the city attorney or others with specific expertise. He added that two
other submissions have been given some more time. He discussed how the City
reasonably works with the property owners who they believe are acting in good faith. He

9/26/16 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes
Page 3 of 11






greatest concern is his privacy because he is right on the road. Director Nielsen also
offered to meet with Mr. Zubeidi.

Matthew Kuntz, 1510 — 15t Street, stated that his house is one of the ones in this
condemnation effort today. He commented that the street will be widened and some of
the houses will be removed. He asked why they weren’t running the street behind the
houses where there would be less of an impact. CAO Hirashima reviewed the project
and the need for the entire lot. Mr. Kuntz commented on the unpleasantness of the
situation and the process. He expressed concern about the person who approached
him with the fair market value offer.

Jill Edgar, 1624 — 15t Street, expressed frustration about the lack of communication from
the City and the way the condemnation process happened.

John Edgar, 1624 — 15! Street, expressed concern about the process and questioned
the timeline. He wondered why they were getting condemnation letters now when other
people are moving in and told they will be able to stay until April 2018. He expressed
concern about the lack of communication. He stated they have requested permission to
stay until the spring when their daughter graduates from high school. CAO Hirashima
said she would call the Edgars to follow up on that.

Approval of Minutes (Written Comment Only Accepted from Audience.)

Consent

1. Consider the September 7, 2016 Claims in the Amount of $1,001,074.66; Paid by
EFT Transactioris and Check Numbers 110935 through 111057 with no Checks
Voided

2. Consider the September 14, 2016 Claims in the Amount of $289,100.38; Paid by
EFT Transactions and Check Numbers 111058 through 111143 with Check
Numbers 98971, 107027 & 107269 Voided

Motion made by Councilmember Vaughan, seconded by Councilmember Stevens, to
approve Consent Agenda items 1 and 2. Motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Review Bids

3. Consider Awarding the Sunnyside Safe Routes to School Contract with Northend
Excavating Inc., in the Amount of $179,492.85 Including Washington State Sales
Tax and Approve a Management Reserve of $20,000 for a Total Aliocation of
$199,492.85

Director Nielsen explained this is a grant-funded project. He explained it is about 600
feet of curbs, gutters, and sidewalks as it relates to Sunnyside Elementary.

9/26/16 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes
Page 5of 11






Director Nielsen stated that this is starting the 45-day lien period. It was considered a
cleanup project with a Brownfields grant.

Motion made by Councilmember Toyer, seconded by Councilmember Muller, to
authorize the Mayor to accept the Former Geddes Marina Interim Action Project,
Starting the 45-day Lien Filing Period for Project Closeout. Motion passed unanimously
(7-0).

8. Consider the Annual Support Agreement and License Agreement for Munis
Software in the Amount of $70,014.23

IT Manager Worth Norton explained that this is exactly the same as last year with a
slight inflation increase.

Motion made by Councilmember Muller, seconded by Councilmember Stevens, to
approve the Annual Support Agreement and License Agreement for Munis Software in
the Amount of $70,014.23. Motion passed unanimously (7-0).

9. Consider an Ordinance Authorizing the Condemnation, Appropriation, Taking,
Damaging and Acquisition of Land and Other Property for the Purpose of
Widening 1st Street

City Attorney Walker stated that this Ordinance is the first step in the condemnation
process if the City is unable to reach a voluntary agreement with the property owners.
The City prefers to resolve these without condemnation. He noted that construction
would not begin until 2018, but given the size of the project and complexities involved, it
is important to have these matters settled.

CAO Hirashima reviewed this process. She explained that a new timeline had been
provided to the neighborhood in June. The City anticipates and hopes that all of these
can be done through a negotiated process.

Motion made by Councilmember Wright, seconded by Councilmember Vaughan, to
adopt Ordinance No. 3033. Motion passed unanimously (7-0).

10. Consider an Ordinance Authorizing the Condemnation, Appropriation, Taking,
Damaging and Acquisition of Land and Other Property for the Purpose of Making
Pedestrian and Bicycle Improvements to Establish Safe Routes to School for
116th St NE and Payment therefore from Transportation Benefit District Fund
114

City Attorney Walker stated that this is similar to the prior item. Director Nielsen added
that the City will try to work with the property owners to handle screening and other
concerns.

9/26/16 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes
Page 7 of 11






Jon Walker stated the need for an Executive Session to discuss two items concerning
acquisition of real estate with action taken on one of those. There will also be a Closed
Session. The time for the Executive Session was expected to be 5 minutes.

Kevin Nielsen:
e He announced that the trail is paved on Phase 1.
e Staff is currently demoing a house on 1st Street.
e Thanks to the Police for their Northern Lights efforts.
e The City received BNSF permits for grade crossing so work can begin on
proceed.

Jim Ballew:

e The trail surface has been put down. The community is very anxious to get on
the trail, however, the second phase is out to bid. There will be a bid opening in
mid-October which will include safety elements, fencing, landscaping, and
signage. The City is asking citizens to be patient until it's complete.

e October will be very busy with many community and family events. Tonight was
the first old movie run at the Opera House.

Dave Koenig:

e Community Development has been very busy as previously noted.

e Regarding Code Enforcement, he stated that they are spreading the load to the
appropriate department when possible. As part of that the website will be
changed, so issues are directed to the appropriate department immediately and
not necessarily funneled through code enforcement staff.

e Council has expressed concerns about the language on the door hanger so this
has been changed to be friendlier.

e He referred to the examples shown by Mr. Johnson during Audience Participation
tonight and noted that some of those are long-term code enforcement issues. He
commented that staff is at least as frustrated about those situations as the
citizens are. He explained that when citizens don’'t want to comply it takes a long
time to get them into compliance, even with abatement efforts.

e He gave examples of ways that Code Enforcement is coordinating with other
agencies and departments.

Gloria Hirashima stated she believes Code enforcement is working very hard to handle
the complaints that are coming to them. Like the Mayor indicated, the response to the
codes filed is really outstanding. She commented that they almost always have
voluntary compliance in a very timely fashion. She suggested getting the message out
to encourage citizens to file complaints so these issues can be addressed. The system
that the City has with complaint-driven code enforcement is pretty much the norm. She
added that there was not a backlog prior to the last month when a huge volume of
complaints was filed. She thinks the code enforcement officers are doing a great job
right now, but they also are discouraged because of all the criticism and all the time they
are spending revisiting cases that have been closed and justifying decisions. She noted
that all the departments are working together well on these matters.

9/26/16 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes
Page 9 of 11






B. Personnel

C. Real Estate — two items, RCW 42.30.110 (1)(b)

Executive Session ended and public meeting reconvened at 9:30 p.m.

Motion made by Councilmember Muller, seconded by Councilmember Norton, to
authorize the Mayor to sign the settlement agreement with Marysville School District on
the Sunnyside Safe Routes to School Project. Motion passed unanimously (7-0).
Adjournment

Seeing no further business Mayor Nehring adjourned the meeting at 9:30 p.m.

Council went into a closed session under RCW 42.30.140 (4) to discuss contract
negotiations/collective bargaining.

Approved this 24 day of October, 2016.

-,

-, ; e

2 Y tas LS
Mayor April ©’Brien

Jon Nehring Deputy City Clerk

9/26/16 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes
Page 11 of 11



